
MAYOR 
Joe Purcell 

POLICE CHIEF 
Paul M. George Jr. 

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 
Michael Hurff Jr.  

FINANCE OFFICER/CITY CLERK 
Andrew Lehr 

 
The City of 

Montana 
 

       City of Hardin     406 N Cheyenne Hardin MT 59034     Phone (406) 665-9260  Fax (406) 665-2719 
 
 
 

The City of Hardin is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 
 

Committee & Council Meetings 
of Tuesday, July 1, 2025 

 

Held by virtual meeting and the Public is invited to attend in person. 
 

Topic:  City of Hardin Council & Committee Meetings – 7/01/2025     
         

Resolutions or Ordinances Committee Meeting: 6:15 p.m. 
Council Meeting – 6:30 p.m. 

 

Start Time:  6:15p.m. Mountain Time 
 

The meeting will open at 6:00 p.m. 
 

If you will be logging into the Council meeting by: 
    Computer: Please identify yourself by submitting your first and last name by using the “Chat” function. 

       Phone:  Please identify yourself by stating your First and Last Name. 
 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9897104479?omn=82457258914 

Meeting ID: 989 710 4479 
 

One tap mobile 
+17193594580,,9897104479# US 
+12532050468,,9897104479# US 

 

Dial by your location 
• +1 719 359 4580 US 
• +1 253 205 0468 US 

• +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
• +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

• +1 669 444 9171 US 
• +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 

• +1 309 205 3325 US 
• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

• +1 360 209 5623 US 
• +1 386 347 5053 US 
• +1 507 473 4847 US 
• +1 564 217 2000 US 

• +1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
• +1 646 931 3860 US 
• +1 689 278 1000 US 

• +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
• +1 305 224 1968 US 

 

Meeting ID: 989 710 4479 
 

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdYSyhPxWF 
 

Meetings are Audio Recorded ONLY   
Montana Legislature House Bill 890 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9897104479?omn=82457258914
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdYSyhPxWF


  

The City of  

  

406 North Cheyenne  
Hardin MT 59034 

(406) 665-9260 
 

Committee Meeting  
AGENDA 

 
July 1, 2025 

Council Chambers 
401 N. Cheyenne 

and by virtual meeting 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9897104479?omn=82457258914 

 

Meeting ID: 989 710 4479 
One tap mobile 

+17193594580,,9897104479# US 
+12532050468,,9897104479# US 

 

 
 

 

                     PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
• Resolutions or Ordinances                                                6:15 p.m. 

 
o Subdivisions 

 Amendments to Regulatory Documents 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

                                                                               
 

                                                                                     Meeting adjourned at ____________   P.M. 
 

Meetings are Audio Recorded Only 
Montana Legislature House Bill 890 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9897104479?omn=82457258914






                                  The City of Hardin 
AGENDA 406 N. Cheyenne Avenue 
 Hardin, MT  59034 

July 1, 2025 
 

 
Page 1 of 1 

AUDIO RECORDING BEGINS 
 

 

 
MEETING CALLED TO ORDER AT 6:30 P.M.   
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 

ROLL CALL: Mayor: __________  
Alderpersons: Steven Hopes      __________         Clayton Greer __________         Chris Sharpe            __________ 
   Rock Massine      __________         Jeremy Krebs  __________         Antonio Espinoza   __________ 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  
Council Meeting                         6/17/2025           Resolutions or Ordinances        6/17/2025 
Finance/Budget Meeting        6/24/2025        Claims 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT:    
 
 
 
 

MAYOR:   
 
 
              

COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
• Personnel Committee/City Policy: Mayor 
• Sewer & Water:  Massine                               
• Law Enforcement: Hopes         
• Streets & Alleys:  Espinoza             
• Parks & Playgrounds: Krebs            
• Finance/Landfill: Greer 
• Resolutions and Ordinances:  Sharpe   

 
 

SPECIAL COMMITTEES: 
 
 

PETITIONS & COMMUNICATIONS:  
o Montana Department of Transportation Summer 2025 Newsletter 
o Big Sky Passenger Rail Authority 
 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  
 

NEW BUSINESS: 
o Subdivisions amendments – City-County Planning Board        

 

o RFQ Sustainable Tourism Management Plan 
 

o In Control, Inc. Proposal - $5,750.75 
 
STAFF REPORTS  

• Public Works:   
• Finance:        
• Police:  
• Legal:      
• Economic Development:  

 

RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 
Ordinance NO. 2025-01 – Amending Pedestrian Interference 
Ordinance NO. 2025-02 – Creating The Offense of Maintaining a Disorderly House 
 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS:  
Local Government Review Study Commission Meetings - 3rd Wednesday of each month, TBD Council Chambers 
 

RFP for Historical Depot Infrastructure Improvement Project - due by 3:00 p.m. July 2, 2025 
 

City Offices : Closed Friday, July 4, 2025 for Independence Day 
 

Budget Meetings - July 8th, 9th, and 10th and continuing as needed – Council Chambers 
 

City of Hardin Job Openings:  Full-time positions: Police Officer and Part-Time Building Inspector  
 
   
 

  Meeting adjourned at ____________P.M. 
AUDIO RECORDING ENDS 

 
 

Additions to the Agenda can be voted on by Council to add to the Agenda for the next Council meeting. 
Agenda items will need to be submitted by Wednesday noon before a Tuesday Council meeting.               



  June 17, 2025 - Minutes 

 1 of 5 
 

THE COMMON COUNCIL 
CITY of HARDIN, MONTANA  
 
 
COUNCIL MEETING: The Regular Council Meeting for June 17, 2025 was called to order 
at 6:32 p.m. with Mayor Joe Purcell presiding by reciting the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
The following Aldermen were present:  Steven Hopes, Clayton Greer, Chris Sharpe, Rock Massine, 
Antonio Espinoza and Jeremy Krebs. Steven Hopes was excused (joined the meeting at 6:45 p.m.) 
 
Also present:  Finance Officer/City Clerk Andrew Lehr, Public Works Director Michael Hurff, Jr., 
and Deputy City Clerk Angela Zimmer, City Attorney, Jordan Knudsen and Police Chief Paul 
George, Jr. 
 
Also present physically: Several members of the public 
There was not anyone present by virtual meeting. 
 
MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS & CLAIMS:  Sharpe made the motion to approve 
the Council minutes as written for June 3, 2025.  Motion seconded by Greer.  On a voice vote the 
motion was unanimously approved. 
 

Greer made a motion to approve the claims for June 17, 2025.   
     

                                                          CLAIM No.                                             Monthly Total 
   
       May, 2025          32420-32428, 32433-32450, 32452, 32454             $           130,782.99         

       June, 2025                 32429-32432, 32451, 32453, 32455                              252,239.67               

       TOTAL Submitted                                                                             $          383,022.66 
             
Massine seconded. On a voice vote, the motion was unanimously approved.  

 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   

JoAnn Feger, provided a history of situations where she has encountered dogs that are loose 
at or near her home.  She voiced she is not only concerned for herself, but children.  Mayor Purcell 
directed her to call the City Police Department or Sheriff’s Department day or night.   

 

Jose Funke voiced his concerns about crime, law enforcement at night, seeing more 
“whinos”, and driving personal vehicles.  (Hopes joined the meeting) 

 

Corrina Kirschenmann-Kuntz voiced her thoughts on loosing police officers at the Police 
Department.  

 

Pat Sargent, resident, provided information about an incident that happened at his home while 
he was out of town.  He hasn’t heard from the Hardin Police Officer that attended that call.  He 
asked who he should contact about vehicles that have been parked across the street from his 
residence.  Mayor Purcell directed him to the police department.  Sargent will meet with the Police 
Chief. 

 
MAYOR:  

 
COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
Personnel Policy/City Policy:   

Mayor Purcell reported on positions that are currently open at the City; adding interviews 
were held recently for those positions and offers have been extended.  

 
Sewer & Water:  
 Massine reported extra water samples are being taken. 
 
Law Enforcement: 
Streets & Alleys: 
 
Parks & Playgrounds:  

Krebs reported he has been talking with Lehr and Hurff about what needs to be ordered for 
the South Park Project; including picnic tables, volleyball equipment, water lines etc. that would be  



  June 17, 2025 - Minutes 

 2 of 5 
 

covered by the grant. Rick Funk, of SplashPadsUSA, is planning to be here by the end 
of this month to get started on the splash pad.   
 
Finance/Landfill: 
 
Resolutions & Ordinances:  

Sharpe reported there was discussion about pedestrian interference and disorderly 
house.  Knudsen will draft ordinances for the next meeting. 

 

Mayor Purcell reported there will be a committee meeting held before the next 
Council meeting to discuss a City-County Planning Board letter regarding Subdivision 
Zoning changes and updates. 

  
SPECIAL COMMITTEES: 
 
PETITIONS & COMMUNICATIONS: 
Mayor Purcell reported the City received the City-County Planning Board minutes from 
the meeting of May 12, 2025.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS:   
  
NEW BUSINESS:  

Mayor Purcell reported the City received a recommendation from the City-County 
Planning Board to approve a Conditional Use Application submitted by Thomas Lind 
and Keshia Croft.  Lind reported the proposal is to renovate the old USDA office,  located 
at 724 West 3rd Street, into apartments for people coming into the area working at the 
hospital, schools, elderly that don’t  to go into assisted living, etc. He reported they are 
trying to improve the community, the area; adding it is a sound building.  Krebs asked if 
this would be subsidized housing, Lind voiced it is not. Krebs voiced he thinks we, the 
City, need the additional housing; it would be a good change to the building. Krebs 
motioned to approve the recommendation.  Greer seconded. On a voice vote the motion 
was unanimously approved. 

 

Mayor Purcell reported a letter was submitted by Environmental Contractors for 
grain bin disposal at the City Landfill. Hurff noted the bins will come from Billings; 
around 550 tons of metal with caulking in between that has non-friable asbestos.  He 
added it can be disposed of in the landfill with other garbage. Massine asked if the bins 
would be cut up into pieces and then hauled to Billings or Yochum’s to be recycled. C.J. 
Yochum reviewed state law regarding ACM asbestos contained material; adding the 
answer is no on scrap. Hurff noted, upon research, it would be difficult to get the metal 
smashed down to get it covered. He noted Fred Collins, Montana Department of 
Environmental Quality inspector for the landfill, will check on the lab results and 
recommended to talk with the landfill engineer to make sure the City can handle the 
amount of waste being added. Krebs asked if it was worth taking it with the added labor; 
adding he didn’t think it was. Barry Damschen, City Landfill Engineer, recommended to 
not take it where they are just to bring it in, the City does not have the manpower or 
equipment to spend to knock it down and pack it to bury it. He recommended to not take 
it. He also noted if it comes in baled, we can take it. Sharpe motioned to not accept it. 
Massine seconded. On a voice vote the motion passed. (5/1)  Sharpe voting Nay. 
 

Janelle Enzminger, President of Help Every Pet, read a letter aloud outlining 
projects and the current amount of money they have paid in regard to the City animal 
population. Sharpe asked what they were asking for, veterinary expenses in the amount 
of $27,086.  She noted when an animal comes in they let Animal Care Center know if 
HEP is paying for it, if it is a County or City animal; they have three separate accounts.  
Loretta Barnes, Vice President, reported HEP paid $5,073.98 from August 25th to present.  
She noted they want to help people in our community.  Barnes provided an overview of 
their needs and the work they do.  Mayor Purcell asked how it is determined what is a 
“city animal”, “county animal” etc.  Barnes reported she asks for the physical address.  
Mayor Purcell noted the report shows their expenses and asked where the funding comes 
from.  It was reported there are donors, fundraisers, and Big Horn County.  She reported 
a report has to be given to the County every quarter; they have a contract with the County 

 



  June 17, 2025 - Minutes 

 3 of 5 
 

Attorney.  Lehr asked why the County wouldn’t cover the City, we are also county tax payers.  
Espinoza asked if they have asked the tribe for anything.  She noted they have; the response was to 
apply for grants. Knudsen asked if they are asking to sign a contract, if they want to work with law 
enforcement, if they are asking for a donation?  Sharpe asked if this could be tabled to have more 
in depth conversation.  There was discussion about how the process was in the past.  Mayor Purcell 
voiced his concern is there are other non-profits in town, it would be hard to donate city taxpayer 
money to one non-profit without having a contract or agreement in place.  Enzminger noted they 
are not looking for donations, they are coming back to get a reimbursement for the money they 
spent at Animal Care Center and wondering if the city will do a contract like the county does.  
Mayor Purcell noted that can be looked at.  Barnes voiced they would like to discuss it further; 
adding they would like to be reimbursed the money they spent this last year.  Krebs voiced he is 
concerned about spaying and neutering and controlling the population. Mayor Purcell noted if 
Council is good with it, the city can go forward to negotiate a contract.  The city program is set up 
for feral animals.  Knudsen noted a contract would be better, with terms and the scope of what the 
city will be billed for. The city is accountable to the taxpayers.  Knudsen noted they are not city 
owned animals, they are animals within the city.  There was further discussion.  Mayor Purcell 
noted if Council is good talks can be started with Chief George and Animal Control. 
 

Barry Damschen, Landfill Engineer, reviewed the bid process for the Landfill Container site.  
He reported the bid was awarded to Yochum Contracting, Inc. (YCI)  He then reviewed the layout 
and a diagram for the construction.  Damschen noted he and Yochum are at a difference of opinion; 
adding the dimensions were detailed out. YCI did not use the call-outs. There was further discussion 
about the dimensions.  Damschen reported he has used these plans for three other projects and has 
never had anyone tell him there is a discrepancy.  He noted Yochum did not bring it up until two 
days after the notice to proceed. Yochum voiced he did at the pre-construction meeting before it 
was signed and Damschen dismissed it.  Damschen voiced “No”.  Knudsen noted there is not a 
need for contract amendments. Mayor Purcell voiced the discussion moving forward is if Council 
will agree to move forward with $37,500 increase without having to go out to bid and with no other 
contingency or other expenses identified. Espinoza motioned to accept. Yochum requested 
additional time if this is approved; he is concerned about the 4th of July holiday. Sharpe seconded.  
Mayor Purcell noted it has been moved and seconded to go forward with the increase for the landfill 
container site for $37,500 with up to a thirty-day extension to get completed with no other 
contingencies.  There was further discussion about the project.  On a voice vote the motion passed. 
On a voice vote the motion passed. (5/1) Krebs voting Nay.   
 

Police Chief Paul George, Jr. reported the Coal Board awarded the department $118,000 to 
purchase new radios.  There is $40,000 obligated from the department’s budget.  Sharpe asked who 
the radios were for.  Chief George noted they are for ten police officers, an additional officer that 
will be coming in October, a few will be sent to dispatch in Alabama to communicate with the City 
department, and one additional to have on hand.  It was noted these radios will allow 
communication with Big Horn County. Krebs noted the purchase if for 15 radios; asking how many 
officers does the department currently have.  Chief George reported there are currently five.  Mayor 
Purcell reported the plan is for a full department.  Espinoza motioned to approve the purchase.  
Greer seconded.  Lehr pointed out if one breaks, it will cost about $8,200 to repair.  It was noted 
they are tough radios. There was further discussion about the budget, cost of the radios, and the 
communication it will allow.  On a voice vote the motion was unanimously approved. 

 

Police Chief Paul George requested approval to purchase camera’s in the amount of $16,985.  
There was discussion about the purpose of the cameras and how they will be utilized.  Espinoza 
motioned to approve the purchase. Mayor Purcell asked if there was a second to the motion.  Hopes 
motioned to table the request.  Greer motioned to second the request to approve the purchase and 
go forward with the quote.  On a voice vote the motion was at a tie vote with Espinoza, Greer, and 
Hopes voting Yea and Sharpe, Massine and Krebs voting Nay.  The Mayor broke the tie vote by 
voting Yea.  Motion passed. 

 

Lehr reviewed the Audit for Fiscal Year 2024.  He reported the auditor is retiring and the 
City will be going out to bid for an auditor.  Krebs motioned to approve the audit.  Massine 
seconded.   On a voice vote the motion was unanimously approved.  

 
STAFF REPORTS: 
Public Works:   

Hurff reported the City took possession of the new garbage truck today. Water Treatment 
Plant: working on getting a Pre-Construction meeting scheduled for the liner installation in the 



  June 17, 2025 - Minutes 

 4 of 5 
 

water tank. Wastewater Treatment Plant: the electrician made an onsite visit as part of 
the WWTP Project. Landfill: getting close to a water truck replacement, there was a 
DEQ inspection, and the street crew put down gravel on the landfill road.  Streets: 
working on potholes, keeping the drains clean, and mowing.  There has been a lot of 
requests for Alley Clean Up, it is scheduled for the end of July. Parks: were sprayed for 
weeds.  Water T&D: lift station is working good.  Hurff reported the City is gearing up 
for Big Horn Days and the 4th of July Events and the new vactor truck is expected to be 
delivered in about three months.  

 
Finance: 

Lehr reported the first budget meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, June 24, 2025 at 
6:00 p.m.; the City received $4,598 in the marijuana excise tax for this quarter with a 
total of $13,825.46 received for the year; the May 2025 tax payment received was nearly 
$570,000; the second draw request for the WWTP Project was provided to the City today 
for $84,888, the funding agencies need to provide final approval before it is received.  
The American Rescue Plan (ARPA) Minimum Allocation Grant was requested in the 
amount of $11,810 for this quarter for the final engineering invoices for the 1st Street 
Project, tank lining project,  and the Preliminary Engineering Report for the Water 
Treatment Plant. There were no requests for the Lodge Grass ARPA project the City is 
sponsoring.   
 

George Toyne asked if there was a projection of what the property tax changes are going 
to do to the revenue next year.  Lehr noted he did not.  
 
Police: 

Police Chief Paul George, Jr. reviewed calls for service adding code violations are 
at forty-nine due to putting out weed signs. He reported Officer Joshua Garcia started 
Monday, he is doing trainings and certifications until he attends the academy.  Job offers 
were extended and accepted for a Police Officer and the TAC/Admin Assistant positions. 
 

Chief Paul George reported he is very transparent, and provided ways he can be reached. 
He addressed people that say things to make him look bad or post things in the paper 
adding it is not a PD issue, not a Police Chief issue, the issues the department has had are 
officer issues.  He has no respect for liars and cowards. He provided a background of 
those issues.  He noted the department has policies and procedures for a reason and he 
expects his staff to abide by the policy and the law; do the job they are paid to do. He 
reviewed a case and noted that now there is a skewed vision of him because of one officer.  
He voiced he is trying to provide the tools they, the officers, need to do their job.  He 
noted Public Safety should be the largest fund of any Cities budget.  He voiced if you 
have a problem with an officer, contact him. He reviewed the term “Disorderly House”, 
a house who is engaged in gambling, public drinking, fighting etc.  An ordinance will 
give the department the right to arrest everyone in the house and also include putting the 
liability on the landlord.   

 

George Toyne voiced the department was established to stop crime in the City, get 
rid of drunks and vagrants, and to clean up the community and since it has been 
established it has gone up.  There was discussion between Lehr, Knudsen, and Chief 
George about court fees/fines dropping. Chief George reported violent crime is down and 
citations have gone up since he has been here. Knudsen noted the majority of people that 
go to jail do not pay the fines.  

 
Legal: 

Knudsen pointed out a response has been drafted to the letters in the Original Briefs 
that will provide facts in the cases that were mentioned. 
 
Economic Development:  

 
RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS:   
Mayor Purcell announced the Little Bighorn Battlefield National Monument 149th Battle 
Anniversary Event schedule is in the lobby.  He announced the following employee 
anniversaries:  Dean Baker, 11 years; Brock Boyer, 3 years; Michael Hurff,  



  June 17, 2025 - Minutes 

 5 of 5 
 

15 years; Remington Malensek, 2 year; Tamara Mendez, 6 years; and Shawndae OldElk, 4 
years. 
 

Local Government Review Study Commission Meeting is scheduled for 6:30 p.m. Wednesday, 
June 18th  at City Council Chambers and is open to the public; Request for Qualifications for the 
Pilot Community Tourism Grant are due by 3:00 p.m. June 20, 2025, Request for Proposals for the 
Historical Depot Infrastructure Improvement Project are due by 3:00 p.m. July 2, 2025, and Budget 
Meetings are scheduled for June 24, 2025 and July 8th, 9th, and 10th, 2025 and continuing as needed.  
 

The City of Hardin has the following Job Openings: Full-time position - Police Officer.  The 
Terminal Agency Coordinator (TAC) / Administrative Assistant I-IV position is pending the pre-
employment qualifications.  Part-Time position - Building Inspector. Positions are open until filled. 
 

Espinoza voiced the Local Government Review Study Commission was voted for and no one shows 
up for the meetings. He encouraged citizens to participate.   
 
Greer motioned to adjourn the meeting at 9:17 p.m.   Feger asked a question about animals being 
on a leash.  Mayor Purcell directed her to the Chief and Police Service Aide.  Espinoza seconded.  
On a voice vote the motion was unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 9:18 p.m. 
 
_________________________________ 
Joe Purcell, Mayor     
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Andrew Lehr, Finance Officer/City Clerk 

 



 

City of Hardin 
 

Resolutions or Ordinances Committee Meeting 
 

June 17, 2025 
 
The Resolutions or Ordinances Committee Meeting began at 6:15 p.m. In attendance were 
Committee members Chris Sharpe, Steven Hopes, and Antonio Espinoza and Council Members 
Clayton Greer, Rock Massine, and Jeremy Krebs, Mayor Joe Purcell, Finance Officer/City 
Clerk Andrew Lehr, City Attorney Jordan Knudsen, Deputy City Clerk Angela Zimmer, and 
Police Chief Paul George. 
 
Also present physically: Members of the public 
There was not anyone present by virtual meeting. 
 
Public Comment:     N/A 
 
Knudsen reported he requested for both Pedestrian Interference and Disorderly House to go before 
the committee. The Pedestrian Interference code currently includes sidewalks and streets. He 
wants to expand this into boulevards.  Knudsen voiced this will be useful to keep people safe and 
to help with the appearance of our town; people sleeping in these locations. Upon further 
discussion, the consensus is to move forward with a draft ordinance. 
 
Disorderly House: Knudsen reported Montana Code allows cities to pass laws to take care of 
disorderly conduct; adding the Chief gave him the idea to  expand our control of disorderly conduct 
to disorderly houses to be able to enforce party houses etc. and going after the tenant or landlord 
for allowing that conduct to happen again and again.  Knudsen reported there are several houses 
in town there are complaints on and this would be a good tool to combat that.  There was further 
discussion about what qualifies as a disorderly house.  The consensus is to move forward with a 
draft ordinance. 
 
There was no further discussion. 
 
   
The meeting ended at 6:24 p.m. 
   
 
___________________________________________ 
Chris Sharpe, Committee Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________ 
Angela Zimmer, Deputy City Cler 



Draf
t



Draf
t



Draf
t







































1

Empowering Communities
Enriching Lives

DestinationiQ 

Prepared for the
City of Hardin, MT
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

SUSTAINABLE TOURISM MANAGEMENT PLAN

STATEMENT: No city/county employee or official will benefit 
personally from our contract award and we accept any 

published Terms and Conditions.



22

DestinationiQ
Empowering Communities.
Enriching Lives. 

We promise to listen closely - especially to challenges and 
concerns - and to develop measurable objectives that lead 
to meaningful outcomes. We are committed to delivering 
strong ROI and will only recommend strategies that align with 
current industry best practices and your community’s vision.

Our deep focus on destination management allows us not 
only to create a successful Sustainable Tourism Management 
Plan but also to guide its implementation - helping the City of 
Hardin evolve sustainably and thrive for years to come.

Thank you,

BRYAN JORDAN
PRESIDENT/CEO

BRYAN@DESTINATIONIQ.COM
800-341-5944 EXT. 301

DestinationiQ
PO BOX 4629

BUENA VISTA, CO 81211

GLOBAL VISTA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
INCORPORATED IN COLORADO, 1995

EIN 43-2015152

To Whom It May Concern,

We are pleased to submit our official quote for the Sustainable Tourism Management Plan. 

DestinationiQ has been providing tourism consulting services such as those requested in 
this RFQ since 1995 - more than 30 years of experience in destination managment. We bring 
well-defined and proven processes for both the development and implementation of every 
component outlined in this RFQ. Examples are included for your review.

Too often, strategic plans and research efforts are created only to be shelved and forgotten. 
That’s why our approach ensures realistic, actionable recommendations tailored to your 
community’s specific needs and budget. Our Sustainable Tourism Management Plan is 
designed to be immediately implementable - focused on near-term results rather than far-
off aspirations. The goal is to help Hardin, MT become a true destination - not just a gateway, 
stopover, or day-trip.

DestinationiQ was founded on the belief that every community deserves to benefit from 
tourism in a way that is economically impactful, socially enriching, and environmentally 
sustainable. 

This belief guides everything we do.
• Our team is composed of specialists in key focus areas, allowing us to deliver services 

that are both high quality and highly efficient.
• We remain adaptable to the evolving nature of tourism and grow alongside our client 

communities.
• We prioritize strong relationships with your staff, stakeholders, businesses, and residents 

to create a truly comprehensive destination management strategy that ensures long-
term success.



3

4 Scope of Work

 4 GOAL #1: INCREASE TOURISM TO BIG HORN COUNTY

 8 GOAL #2: PROMOTE SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

 14 GOAL #3: STRENGTHEN REGIONAL IDENTITY AND BRANDING

 16 GOAL #4: ENHANCE VISITOR EXPERIENCE

 32 GOAL #5: ENGAGE STAKEHOLDERS IN A COHESIVE TOURISM STRATEGY

 37 GOAL #6: SUPPORT LONG-TERM SUSTAINABILITY

40 Stakeholder Engagement and Public Outreach Process

43 Timeline

44 Cost and Staff Capacity

45 Team

48 Agency

52 Approach

53 Success Stories

60 Partner Brands

62 References

63 Beliefs

TABLE OF CONTENTS

iQ



4

GOAL #1: INCREASE TOURISM TO BIG HORN COUNTY

We would like to EXPAND on your goal, “Increase tourism to Big Horn County”. 

DestinationiQ will showcase the region’s existing assets, identify opportunities to 
develop new ones, and create a visitor experience that encourages longer stays, 
repeat visits, AND positive word-of-mouth.

Here is how we will do this:

1) Create the Official Sustainable Tourism Management Plan (STMP)

DestinationiQ will develop a Sustainable Tourism Management Plan that 
outlines clear guidelines, objectives, goals, tactics, and measurable outcomes 
for the next five years. A comprehensive plan ensures continuity through staff 
changes and provides consistency across all marketing and advertising efforts.

The STMP will detail all tasks, recommended budgets (specifically for ad buys 
and other hard costs), timelines, recommended platforms (e.g., social media, 
search engines, print), budget allocations, collateral needs, KPIs and methods for 
measuring both individual campaign performance and year-over-year success 
using economic data from the City of Hardin.

SCOPE OF WORK

Tourism, Economic Development and Marketing Plans 
Produced by DestinationiQ

iQ



5

SCOPE OF WORK

2) Create Marketing Plan 

A portion of the STMP will be dedicated specifically to a marketing plan tailored to 
your community’s unique needs and budget. DestinationiQ will ensure the plan 
aligns with your goals and vision while remaining practical and achievable in the 
short term - not an idealistic roadmap that feels out of reach.

One of our primary goals will be to create a destination of Hardin, MT, rather than a 
stop-over, gateway, or day-trip.

Marketing Plans 
Produced by DestinationiQ

iQ



6

3) Promote Awareness

The STMP will emphasize the importance of a cohesive branding strategy for Har-
din’s tourism efforts - one that reflects the community’s identity and long-term 
vision. For the brand to be effective, it must be consistently visible and engaging 
to your target audiences. A key component of the marketing plan will include the 
continued promotion of Hardin’s brand (to be developed; see Branding Strategy 
section).

4) Create Social Channels

Social media channels - such as Instagram, Facebook, and others - are essential 
tools in today’s digital landscape. As part of the STMP, DestinationiQ will 
recommend the most effective platforms for the City of Hardin and will create 
and set them up on your behalf.

   

SCOPE OF WORK

Social Channels 
Produced by DestinationiQ

iQ



7

5) Create Website

Every marketing piece, advertisement, and campaign needs a centralized 
“landing” place. An official, user-friendly website will allow potential visitors to 
easily find the information they need to plan a trip to Hardin and Big Horn County. 

Based on the Asset Inventory and Branding Strategy components of this project,
DestinationiQ will provide a recommended site layout, navigation structure, and 
visual design outline.

SCOPE OF WORK

Royal Gorge Region Website

Websites 
Designed and Developed by DestinationiQ

iQiQ



8

GOAL #2: PROMOTE SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Our business model prioritizes residents and local businesses first. This ground-up 
approach fosters community buy-in, enhances the visitor experience, and generates 
a more diverse and sustainable economic impact through tourism.

All promotional efforts will be guided by the STMP and its corresponding marketing 
plan.

Here is how we will do this:

 1) Deliver Asset inventory

DestinationiQ will develop a comprehensive inventory and analysis of all 
tourism-related assets within the designated area - including natural, historical, 
cultural, recreational, and commercial resources. This Asset Inventory will serve as 
a foundational tool to inform key initiatives such as:

 • Website development
 • Business promotion
 • Event promotion
 • Overall Campaign strategy

SCOPE OF WORK

iQ



9

SCOPE OF WORK

Asset Inventory Example: The Asset Inventory for the City of Trinidad, CO 
provides detailed information for each asset, including name, address, 
complete contact details, social media profiles, website links, phone numbers, 
photos, multiple categories, information sources, events, and other relevant 
data.

DELIVERABLES: 
• Asset Name. 
• Category (e.g., Attraction, Restaurant, Hotel, Event, Park, Historical Site, etc.)
• GPS Coordinates (if no physical address is available).
• Phone Number.
• Website URL
• Social Media Links
• Images (URLs or File references)
• Ticketing Information (if applicable)
• Accessibility Features
• Seasonality (year-round / seasonal & operating months)
• General Event Dates (if applicable) For example, March or the first weekend 

in September.
• Tags/Keywords
• Data Validation & Quality Assurance

iQ



10

 2) Develop Promotional Messaging Toolkit

Using your new brand, DestinationiQ will develop a toolkit with tailored 
messaging for various platform -for example, distinct content for Facebook 
compared to print ads.  

Our goal is to make your destination’s brand memorable by creating taglines and 
messages that resonate with your target audiences and highlight what makes 
your destination unique.

SCOPE OF WORK

Google Search Messaging
by DestinationiQ

Meta/Facebook Messaging
by DestinationiQ

iQ



11

Citywide Summer Social Media Toolkit for Tourism Businesses
by DestinationiQ

SCOPE OF WORK

iQ



12

 3) Deliver Economic Viability Study

DestinationiQ will deliver an Economic Viability Study addressing two critical 
questions:  

First: Can the community of Hardin, MT sustain the promotional activities 
outlined in the STMP and marketing plan, based on projected budget and 
resource availability?
Second: What is the expected economic impact from tourism revenue, 
including estimated visitor spending, job creation, and tax revenue?

This comprehensive data will empower city and tourism officials to make 
informed decisions about long-term investments, confidently communicate 
these plans to business owners, stakeholders, and residents, and build stronger 
support and advocacy for tourism.

SCOPE OF WORK

12-year Economic Impact vs Lodging Tax Revenue with ROI Calculation
for the Royal Gorge Region, Colorado 

Management and Analysis 
by DestinationiQ

iQ

$103M+

$352K

$101M+

$320K

$98M+

$372K

$84M+

$230K

$91M+

$256K

$89M+

$236K

$87M+

$230K

$80M+

$203K

$80M+

$190K

$75M+

$140K

$75M+

$137K

$57M+

$116K

$58M+

$132K

2011 2012 20232022202120202019201820172016201520142013

Travel 
Spending

Lodging 
Tax 

Revenue

376% Increase in Lodging Tax ^ (12-year period)
$975 Million Travel Spending*
80% Increase in Travel Spending*

$381 : $1 - ROI



13

 4) Deliver Market Analysis Report

As part of our Marketing Plan, DestinationiQ will produce a Marketing Analysis 
Report outlining your ideal target demographics, key assets for promotion, gaps 
in local physical and digital infrastructure, and other essential data needed to 
develop an effective marketing strategy.

SCOPE OF WORK

Marketing Analysis Reports
by DestinationiQ

iQ



14

GOAL #3: STRENGTHEN REGIONAL IDENTITY AND BRANDING

An effective tourism brand goes beyond visuals - it evokes emotion, communicates 
a clear promise, and authentically reflects your community’s unique character. 
It resonates with your target audiences, stands out from the competition, and 
maintains consistency across all advertising platforms as well as throughout your 
city and county.

 Here is how we will accomplish this:

 1) Develop Branding Strategy

Branding is a collaborative process that weaves through every aspect of your 
marketing - including advertisements, announcements, emails, social posts, and 
website design. 

This branding process includes:
 • Developing a distinctive name
 • Identifying your Destination Character (iQ)
 • Creating Flexible Taglines (iQ)
 • Establishing a visual identity (colors, fonts, design elements)
 • Producing a comprehensive brand guidebook

Our aim is to build a memorable and unique brand identity for Hardin that serves 
as the foundation for all marketing, advertising, PR, social media, and promotional 
activities.

DestinationiQ recommends starting with a collaborative approach, led by a 
main point of contact and involving a curated group of tourism stakeholders. 
We will conduct stakeholder interviews to uncover your destination’s brand 
personality - whether adventurous, 
relaxing, cultural, historic, or 
otherwise - and develop a 
compelling brand narrative. 
This narrative will position your 
destination in an engaging way 
and establish key themes and 
messaging pillars to guide all future 
marketing efforts.

SCOPE OF WORK



15

 
 2) Regional Collaboration

Traditionally, tourism development has followed a single-destination model, 
with each location competing independently to attract visitors through various 
marketing strategies.  

However, the rise of niche travel markets presents an opportunity to position 
entire regions as multi-destination experiences. 

Successfully tapping into these markets requires destinations to collaborate - 
aligning marketing, product development, and investment efforts across the 
region

It’s time to shift from competition to cooperation, partnering with neighboring 
destinations to create a stronger, united multi-destination alliance that promotes 
the region as a whole.

SCOPE OF WORK

Executive Summary: 
The counties of Utah’s West Desert - Juab, Millard, and Beaver - have partnered to 
digitize a comprehensive OHV trail system to support the growing demand for off-
highway vehicle recreation.

This digitization will help track and manage OHV visitation more effectively, enabling 
local businesses to make better-informed decisions. Additionally, it aims to 
enhance safety and enjoyment for OHV users, encouraging increased visitation and 
generating greater economic benefits across the region. 

Known as The Backyard, this OHV trail digitization project has several strategic 
priorities: infrastructure, brand awareness, promotion, education, and brand 
strategy. The comprehensive plan includes an implementation timeline detailing 
each priority by year, along with a dedicated marketing budget.

Three County Regional Collaboration - 4-Year Comprehensive Plan including: 
Branding, Marketing Strategy and Execution, Product/Swag Development

by DestinationiQ

iQ



16

GOAL #4: ENHANCE VISITOR EXPERIENCE

Visitor experience is essential for attracting and retaining visitors. An exceptional 
experience encourages guests to stay longer, return in the future, and recommend 
your destination to friends and family. We will help elevate the visitor experience 
in many ways, including developing new activities based on existing local assets - 
methods we have successfully implemented repeatedly.

Here are a few ways will do this:

1) Visitor Surveys

SCOPE OF WORK

Visitor Surveys - Electronic AND In-Person
by DestinationiQ

iQ



17

SCOPE OF WORK

2) Activity Passport
 

DestinationiQ will conceptualize and implement an Activity Passport Program 
for the City of Hardin and Big Horn County. We want to ensure that the ideas that 
go into the passport project are unique. We will meet with business owners and 
tourism stakeholders to brainstorm specific implementation details, but want to 
start with the following foundational goals for the program:

 • Increased participation in activities and increased spending at local 
businesses should be one of the highest priorities.

 • Branding and execution of the passport program must be unique and capture 
the attention of visitors.

 • Visitors will need incentives to use and participate in the program.
 • Businesses should not be asked to discount heavily or operate the program at 

a loss. We will aim to create a win-win for businesses and visitors

iQ

Visitor Incentive Program
by DestinationiQ



18

SCOPE OF WORK

3) Marketing Materials Suite
 

Based on your brand, DestinationiQ will conceptualize and design both digital 
and print materials for the following:

 • General Big Horn County promotional materials.
 • 150th Anniversay of the Battle of Little Bighorn to include: event guides, 

merchandise and social media.

iQ

Visitor Incentive Program
by DestinationiQ



19

SCOPE OF WORK

4) Tourism Product Development
 

With a focus on sustainable tourism, DestinationiQ has implemented various 
products and campaigns in other locations that support this goal. We will 
concentrate on showcasing your natural assets, ensuring sustainability while 
highlighting the authentic character of your destination.

Stargazing. (Beaver County, UT) Montana is known as “Big Sky Country,” offering 
spectacular night skies. Stargazing is a low-impact, sustainable activity that 
encourages visitors to stay overnight and enjoy the natural beauty.

iQ



20

   

SCOPE OF WORK

See https://ramblersutah.com/rugged-skies

This stargazing microsite features a sub-brand dedicated 
to promoting the region’s dark skies.

iQ



21

SCOPE OF WORK

Rugged Skies Pledge advocating for 
responsible stargazing. 

Stargazing Industry Advocacy & 
Engagement Guide for use by businesses 
and tourism stakeholders. 

iQ



22

SCOPE OF WORK

Rugged Skies Instagram Reels

iQ



23

SCOPE OF WORK

Over the course of 5 months, Colorado Stargazing garnered…
 
• Over 15,000 page views
• 3,000 Instagram followers
• 13,000 Facebook post engagements
• Articles in 5280, Roadtrippers, 303 Magazine, and more

 Discover Colorado Stargazing at colorado.com/coloradostargazing

The Colorado Tourism Office awarded the Outstanding 
Marketing Program Award at the 2020 Governor’s 
Tourism Conference to Colorado Stargazing, a program 
they defined as a novel travel opportunity for all ages 
and one which led to one of tourism’s most coveted 
economic benefits - overnight stays.

iQ



24

SCOPE OF WORK

The Great High Prairie Birding Map

Birding. (Prowers County, CO) Birding is another low-impact activity enjoyed by 
visitors of all ages. Birders often have higher incomes and more time to spend at a 
destination than the average visitor, making it a valuable tourism segment.

See https://thegreathighprairie.com/birding/

Comprehensive List of all bird 
species with high resolution 

photos. 

iQ



25

Agri-Tourism

Agritourism offers educational experiences that connect visitors with scenic 
landscapes and local heritage. It’s an excellent way for communities to diversify their 
economies while preserving rural character. 

A Agritourism operations generate jobs and boost the local economy through their own 
purchases, while visitors also support surrounding businesses by shopping, dining, and 
lodging nearby.

SCOPE OF WORK

Gravel Grinder

Gravel biking has become the new favorite for cyclists. Instead of riding on busy paved 
roads between stoplights and worrying about distracted drivers, gravel bikers enjoy 
scenic backcountry routes, riding for pleasure without interruptions. 

In rural areas, gravel biking options are nearly limitless. Unlike mountain bikers, who 
must stick to trails, or road bikers limited to paved roads, gravel bikers can explore 
almost anywhere.

We showcase your best gravel routes with detailed information such as elevation gain, 
descriptions, and images - helping visitors leave with a great impression of your area.

iQ



26

SCOPE OF WORK

Cultural & Heritage Tours

Cultural and heritage tourism involves visiting places, artifacts, and activities that 
authentically represent the stories and people of both the past and present. This type of 
tourism includes cultural, historic, and natural assets

Studies show that cultural and heritage tourists travel more frequently, often journey 
farther to seek meaningful experiences, and spend more money than the average 
traveler. Beyond the economic benefits, destinations that promote cultural and heritage 
tourism also gain social and environmental advantages.

iQ

Cultural and Heritage Opportunity - Crow Nation

Hardin, MT is uniquely positioned to be able to celebrate and share the 
heritage and culture of Crow Nation in a respectful and authentic way.  

Close to 75% of the Crow tribe’s population live on or near the reservation and 
may present an opportunity for a truly unique and powerful partnership.

We will explore this idea with tourism stakeholders, and meet with Crow Tribe 
representatives to ensure any tourism activities are done with respect and 
complete approval of the Crow peoples.



27

SCOPE OF WORK

OHV Trail Guides

Off-roading has surged in popularity across North America. The global off-road vehicle 
market was valued at $24.37 billion in 2024 and is projected to grow to approximately 
$37.48 billion by 2034. As the popularity of OHVing increases, regions where off-roading 
is most common have witnessed the sprouting of a new tourism economy.

What started off as a niche hobby for blue-collar people living in the rural countryside, 
OHVing has blossomed into a full-fledged sport with huge potential.

iQ

Audio Tours

Every destination has a story to tell. Audio tours are a low-impact and sustainable 
way to inspire visitors to explore sites of interest, stay longer, and shop more. Tours 
work without WI-FI or cell reception and operate hands-free for safety once the tour 
is downloaded to your mobile device. Tours can be developed specifically for driving 
routes or walking routes.

The list of potential tour ideas are nearly unlimited, with scenic byways, historic 
downtowns, geology, paleontolgy, heritage, exhibits, museums, food and many more 
topics as great candidates for a tour and a unique way to welcome guests of all ages.

DestinationiQ has conceptualized and designed numerous audio tours, providing 
copy, voice-over talent recommendations, route placement and overall story guidance 
for numerous locations. After launch, ongoing marketing and partnership with 
businesses and other points of interest along the route are key to continued success. 



28

SCOPE OF WORK

Road Biking

Transform your long stretches of paved roads into valuable tourism assets by 
developing Road Biking Tours. 

We provide road bikers with curated routes featuring your best paved roads, complete 
with details such as elevation gain, descriptions, and images to create a memorable 
experience. 

Additionally, we include points of interest - highlighting your region’s historical sites, 
cultural attractions, outdoor recreation options, dining, and more - giving riders the 
tools to fully explore and enjoy your area.

It is by riding a bicycle that you learn the contours of a country best, since you 
have to sweat up the hills and coast down them. Thus you remember them as 
they actually are, while in a motor car only a high hill impresses you, and you 
have no such accurate remembrance of country you have driven through as 
you gain by riding a bicycle.

~ Ernest Hemingway

iQ



29

SCOPE OF WORK

Royal Gorge Unfiltered - Reimagine the Rockies
by DestinationiQ

5) Develop Campaigns

Keeping campaigns fresh is essential. Each year, new year-long campaigns 
should be developed to align with that year’s specific objectives. These 
campaigns should work hand-in-hand with the brand, reinforcing key goals 
while continuing to promote the destination and build overall brand awareness.  

iQ



30

   

SCOPE OF WORK

 Do It Right. Don’t Ignite. Instagram Posts & Reels

iQ

Do It Right. Don’t Ignite. (Juab County, UT) Visitors to Juab County’s Little Sahara 
Sand Dunes were burning pallets , leaving behind hazardous nails that damaged 
OHVs and injured people. To address the issue, the county launched the “Do It Right. 
Don’t Ignite.” campaign - aimed at educating visitors and encouraging safer, more 
responsible behavior.    See https://juab.is/do-it-right-dont-ignite/



31

SCOPE OF WORK

Royal Gorge Region - Responsible Tourism Campaign
by DestinationiQ

This is an example of an initial concept deck

Campaign Execution on Website iQ



32

GOAL #5: ENGAGE STAKEHOLDERS IN A COHESIVE TOURISM STRATEGY

We aim to foster collaboration in a positive manner and get buy-in from tourism 
stakeholders using a deliberate and on-going process.

Here is how we will do this:

 1) Stakeholder Surveys

Regularly evaluating the needs, feedback, successes, and challenges of local tour-
ism stakeholders is essential. This insight allows you to adjust your approach and 
re-prioritize elements of the Sustainable Tourism Management Plan and Marketing 
Plan to stay aligned with community goals and evolving conditions.

SCOPE OF WORK

Tourism Stakeholder Surveys - Electronic AND In-Person
by DestinationiQ

iQ



33

2) Monthly Reporting

SCOPE OF WORK

iQ



34

SCOPE OF WORK

 3) Social Media Coop - Provide Assistance for Local Tourism Businesses

iQ



35

SCOPE OF WORK

 
 4) Monthly Newsletter - Sent to ALL Tourism Stakeholders

iQ



36

 5) Develop Tourism Advocacy Plan (primary focus on residents and local business owners)

DestinationiQ is committed to building and maintaining strong relationships with 
key audiences:

 • Tourism Officials
 • Elected Leaders
 • Tourism “Champions”
 • Business Owners
 • Residents

With a focus on education and advocacy, DestinationiQ will develop a customized 
Tourism Advocacy Plan designed to communicate the value and benefits of tourism. 
This plan will include easy-to-understand print and digital materials that clearly 
explain why supporting tourism and increasing visitation is essential for community 
and economic growth.

SCOPE OF WORK

iQ



37

GOAL #6: SUPPORT LONG-TERM SUSTAINABILITY

At DestinationiQ, we believe that creating a plan is just the beginning. Our 
commitment extends to equipping you with the tools, knowledge, and training 
needed to successfully implement that plan for the long term. We aim to build trust 
and form a lasting partnership, supporting you every step of the way on your tourism 
journey.

Here is how we will accomplish this:

1) Develop a 1, 3, 5-year Tourism Assessment Plan (TAP) 

One of the final and most critical steps will be the creation and implementation of 
a Tourism Assessment Plan (TAP) at key points throughout your tourism journey. 
DestinationiQ will develop this TAP and be by your side to help with the overall 
performance evaluation. We will compare statistics/analytics to the goals and key 
performance indicators (KPIs) that are outlined in the STMP and Marketing Plan.

DestinationiQ Based on performance results and external influences - such 
as political, economic, or environmental factors - we’ll provide informed 
recommendations on whether to maintain, adjust, or significantly shift strategies to 
ensure continued success.

SCOPE OF WORK

iQ



38

 2) Long-Term Relationships

At DestinationiQ, we build close, professional partnerships with our client - rooted 
in trust, collaboration, and a shared vision. We listen carefully, work alongside you, 
and treat your community as our own. This deep connection fuels our mission: 
empowering communities and enriching lives through sustainable tourism
This continuity brings our vision to life; empowering communites and enriching 
lives.  We’re driven by the potential each community has and how they can thrive 
sustainably, creating positive change without sacrificing authenticity.

We believe every community has the potential to thrive without losing its 
authenticity. Yet, tourism management can be overwhelming, especially without the 
time, resources, or expertise to move forward strategically. That’s where we come in.

DestinationiQ fills that gap - elevating your efforts and guiding your community 
to its next level of tourism evolution. We go beyond traditional consulting. We act as 
community architects, helping you design and implement a thriving, sustainable 
tourism future, managing every facet from strategy to execution. Together, we’ll turn 
your community into a destination that truly prospers.

SCOPE OF WORK

3) Destination Management

We’re more than a marketing agency - DestinationiQ is a Destination Management 
Agency.  This distinction matters, and we believe it’s essential for the long-term 
success of any area looking to maximize the full benefits of tourism.

Destination Management is an ongoing, strategic process that supports 
communities - whether cities, counties, or regions - in managing all aspects of 
tourism. It goes far beyond marketing. It includes advertising, visitor experience 
and education, tourism advocacy, strategic planning, product development, grant 
writing, budgeting, research, creative services, and consultation on social, economic, 
cultural, and environmental issues.

At DestinationiQ, we help communities thrive by managing tourism holistically, 
sustainably, and with a clear vision for the future.

iQ



39

 
 3) Annual Report

Accountability Matters.

Many cities and counties require tourism boards to report on their annual activities 
and outcomes. This is not just a compliance task - it’s also a valuable opportunity to 
advocate for tourism’s impact and future.

DestinationiQ will produce a professional, easy-to-understand annual report that 
serves multiple purposes:

 •  A formal report to elected officials and the community
 • A helpful introduction and historical overview for new tourism board members
 • An advocacy tool to present to tourism stakeholders, demonstrating progress 

and reinforcing the value of tourism investment

This report becomes a key part of your ongoing tourism story - showcasing results, 
building credibility, and securing future support.

SCOPE OF WORK

iQ



40

  
Getting things started on the right foot is essential. DestinationiQ will lay the 
foundation and begin by engaging with tourism stakeholders across the City 
of Hardin to gain a well-rounded, honest understanding of the current tourism 
landscape and future potential.

STEP 1: KickOff Meeting with City Project Lead (Virtual)
 
DestinationiQ will meet with the City’s designated tourism lead to align on goals, 
confirm timelines, and outline expectations. Our onboarding process is thorough yet 
adaptable, designed to ensure a seamless, efficient start. Topics and materials we’ll 
request or review include:
  

• Confirmation of RFQ and city goals. 
• Existing strategic, marketing, or comprehensive plans.
• Performance data (e.g., paid advertising, website analytics, visitor data).
• Access to media and asset libraries.
• A contact list of stakeholders for interviews and focus groups.
• Planning for an on-site immersion trip for asset discovery. 

STEP 2: Interviews with City Officials and Tourism Leaders (On-Site)

City leaders will help define what tourism success looks like, short-term and long-
term, and share what’s worked, what hasn’t, and where the greatest opportunities 
and challenges lie. 

DestinationiQ will conduct structured, interactive interviews using a customized 
Q&A format to ensure all voices are heard and top priorities are clearly identified.

STEP 3: Focus Groups with Stakeholders (On-Site & Virtual)

Using the stakeholder list and our own research, we will invite a diverse cross-section 
of residents and business owners to participate in a series of focus groups. These 
sessions will help assess tourism’s past performance, current state, and future 
possibilities. DestinationiQ will lead the discussions with a focus on inclusivity and 
transparency - key to fostering community buy-in and long-term support.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT and PUBLIC OUTREACH PROCESS

iQ



41

IMMERSION AND DISCOVERY TRIP (On-site)

DestinationiQ  believes that truly understanding your region - listening closely to 
your needs, vision, and challenges - is essential to authentically representing your 
community when developing strategic tourism plans and recommendations. Many 
destinations hold untapped potential but are limited by outdated ideas of what 
visitors want or what the area offers. This mindset can restrict tourism growth.

Our goal is to identify and standardize all possible visitor assets to ensure your 
community is defined by its full range of attractions - not just a single landmark or 
overshadowed by larger nearby destinations. By uncovering fresh opportunities, we 
can help attract and engage more visitors.

The objective of this phase is to develop a comprehensive tourism asset inventory 
for the City of Hardin, MT. This inventory will serve as a foundational tool to enhance 
visitor experiences by cataloging every relevant tourism-related asset accurately 
and thoroughly. 

Members of DestinationiQ’s senior staff will personally visit your community, 
speaking with business owners, tourism stakeholders, and city officials. 

What this includes:

Asset Inventory 

A structured spreadsheet listing every tourism asset with essential details. This 
inventory will be designed for easy use across all future tourism initiatives, 
including your website and marketing campaigns. See the Asset Inventory 
section for additional details.

Photography. 

During immersion trips, our team will photograph key assets and community 
scenes. These images will be provided license-free for your marketing and 
promotion.

Online Asset Discovery

We will evaluate your digital presence, including website and social media 
channels, images used online, search engine visibility for target priorities (not 
a full SEO website audit), brand awareness, public relations coverage, news 
articles, reviews, and mentions on review platforms.  iQ

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT and PUBLIC OUTREACH PROCESS



42

• 

Existing Plan Analysis

DestinationiQ will review current marketing or strategic plans to assess 
implementation, examining both online and onsite efforts. Special attention 
will be given to brand awareness and consistency. Findings will feed into the 
development of the STMP

On-site Branding Review

Experiencing the community as first-time visitors, we will assess:

 • How welcoming and inviting the destination feels.
 • Signage and wayfinding adequacy.
 • Availability and accessibility of visitor information.
 • Overall visitor experience and likelihood of return visits

Gap Identification & Opportunity Recommendations

DestinationiQ will identify missing elements and recommend new 
opportunities across various asset categories, including but not limited to:

 • Natural Attractions – National & state parks, mountains, rivers, lakes, 
beaches, caves, stargazing, and scenic landscapes.

 • Cultural & Historical Sites – Museums, heritage sites, landmarks, historic 
buildings, and indigenous cultural centers.

 • Recreational Facilities – Ski resorts, hiking trails, cycling paths, golf 
courses, rec centers, parks, courts, pools, and adventure parks.

 • Events & Festivals – Local celebrations, music festivals, food and wine 
events, sports tournaments, and seasonal festivities.

 • Accommodation & Hospitality Services – Hotels, resorts, bed & 
breakfasts, campgrounds, and vacation rentals.

 • Food & Beverage Establishments – Restaurants, breweries, wineries, 
farmers’ markets, and culinary experiences.

 • Tourism Infrastructure – Visitor centers, bathrooms, parking, 
transportation hubs, guided tour services, meeting and convention 
spaces, event venues, and information kiosks.

iQ

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT and PUBLIC OUTREACH PROCESS



43

               

We are available to begin this project immediately.

iQ

TIMELINE



44

               

 
 $37,000 ANNUAL COST (payable monthly at $3,083/mo for the duration of the 2-year contact)
 

Inclusions:

• On-site Stakeholder Engagement interviews
• On-site Focus Groups
• On-site Asset Inventory / Immersion and Discovery Trip
• On-site Presentation of STMP and results of all stakeholder engagement
• Lodging, meals and all expenses for any on-site visits

Exclusions:
Any hard costs, including but not limited to printing, swag, ad buys, etc.

According to Drew Leher, Finance Officer, the City of Hardin, MT has committed to 
$14,000 in matching funds for this project. We anticipate using this amount for any 
hard costs in Year One, including printing..

Notes:
1. Social Media Coop – DestinationiQ will develop this program and depending on the scope of 

social media marketing and ad spend budget, the execution of the program will require some 
amount of additional budget allocation in year two for support and management.

2. Website – DestinationiQ will provide site layout, navigation structure and a visual design 
outline. This timeline represents full development of a website that will require additional 
budget allocation in year two.

3. Campaigns – One year-long campaign will be developed based on deliverables completed 
from the STMP in year one and be ready to launch in year two.

4. Regional Collaboration – DestinationiQ will research and propose regional collaborations for 
the City of Hardin. The deliverables jointly decided by collaborators may indicate a need for 
additional budget allocation or deliverables.

5. Marketing – Depending on scope and ad buy budget, active marketing for any items not 
included in the Scope of Work will require additional budget allocation in year two. Examples 
are search engine marketing, social media marketing, on-going content development, and 
on-going photography and/or videography.

• Tourism Product Development – DestinationiQ may recommend the development of one or 
several of our tourism products. The development, scope and budget for these products will 
require additional budget allocation in year two.

• Grant Writing – DestinationiQ will work with city staff to apply for grant funds from the Pilot 
Community Tourism Grant through the Montana Department of Commerce for year two. We 
will help to develop an appropriate marketing budget for items developed in year one and 
help write a compelling grant application based on execution of the STMP.

FINANCIAL STABILITY, INSURANCE & REQUIREMENTS

Proof of sufficient insurance and adequate financial resources are available upon request. We agree to 
comply with requested and required paperwork. iQ

COST

STAFF CAPACITY

We have the staffing capacity to take on this project with no limitations or delays



45

Lindsay Diamond
Account Director
Since 2016

As the Account Director at 
DestinationiQ, Lindsay has the 
privilege of applying a lifetime 
of world travel experience to 
her position. A foundation in 
world travel coupled with 
her skills in communication, 
relationship-building, strategic 
planning, and leadership 
enable her to guide clients on 
a successful path of tourism 
evolution and sustainable 
growth.

Lindsay’s extensive network 
includes tourism directors, 
board members, industry 
experts, social media 
influencers, state tourism 
offices, journalists, 
photographers, business 
leaders, and more.

We are a fully-staffed destination management agency 
with an emphasis on sustainable destination 

management, marketing, and design. 
We’ve been in the tourism industry since 1995.

Our team is flexible, nimble and ready to pivot strategies 
as your needs evolve. We thrive on extensive internal and 
external communication to deliver a high level of return.

Core Leadership Team 

Jim Kober
Content 
Manager

Since 2023

Jim is an 
award-winning 
writer with deep 

expertise in 
digital 

marketing, 
promoting and 
growing tourism 

for clients 
nationwide.

Tina Jordan
Client Relations 

& Graphic 
Designer

Since 2022

Tina is an artist 
by nature and a 
people person 

at heart. Her 
broad array of 
skills help foster 

relationships 
and provide a 

unique 
perspective on 

design.

Sean Jefferson
Technical 
Director

Since 2015

Sean is a 20+ 
year veteran of 

digital 
technology. 

His calm 
demeanor gives 
him the ability to 

effortlessly 
communicate 

complex 
concepts to 

clients.

Kirsten Slavin 
Project 

Manager
Since 2022

Kirsten keeps our 
staff focused, 

organizing 
projects to 

ensure 
execution is 

efficient. She is 
involved with all 

clients and 
DestinationiQ 

tasks.

PAID ADS 
MANAGEMENT

 Chris Suglia  
Samantha Shennum

SOCIAL MEDIA 
MANAGEMENT

Becca Nelson 
Ashley Kelley

ANALYTICS & 
REPORTS 

Nathaniel Page

COPYWRITING
Celeste Aguzino

WEB DESIGNER/DEVELOPMENT
Caitlin Rice        Pankaj Lehar

David Fischetti        Robert Dana
        

GRAPHIC DESIGN
Jessie Eck 

Kimberly Graydon
Gabriela Quitian

Team
Our team consists of award winning graphic designers, branding experts, print designers 

paid ad managers, website designers, programmers, copywriters, photographers, 
videographers, data analytics specialists, content creators, organic social media teams, 

and more!

     Our team capacity allows us to hand pick members of our team that are right for 
     you and your destination.

iQ



46

NATHANIEL PAGE - Analytics and Reports
Nate has over 6 years of expertise in analytics, specializing in digital advertising, with 
proficiency in tools like Google Data Studio, Google Analytics, and Google Tag Manager. 
He excels at developing dashboards and reports, identifying KPIs, and optimizing tracking 
systems to enhance business performance.

DAVID FISCHETTI - Website Design and Development
Dave is a seasoned web developer and WordPress expert with over 20 years of experience. 
He specializes in creating custom business solutions, scalable WordPress websites, and 
developing bespoke themes and plugins. His work simplifies managing complex datasets 
for clients through intuitive admin interfaces.

CAITLIN RICE- Website Design and Development
Caitlin brings nearly a decade of expertise in website design and digital strategy, specializ-
ing in crafting impactful and engaging websites that elevate the missions of organizations 
in tourism and destination marketing. She is passionate about creating compelling user 
experiences that connect people with places, communities, and culture.

ROBERT DANA- Web programming
With over 40 years of experience and a Bachelor’s degree in Software Engineering from 
Colorado Technical University, Rob is a versatile full-stack developer. His expertise spans 
DevOps, server management, backend data handling, front-end design, and mobile app 
development, delivering comprehensive, end-to-end solutions.

CELESTE AGUZINO - Copywriting
Celeste is a collaborative, solutions-oriented communications strategist with over 8 years 
of experience. She is a skilled leader with a talent for producing creative, top-notch work.

PANKAJ LEHAR - Web programming and Website Maintenance
Pankaj is a seasoned full stack web developer with over 12 years of experience. His passion 
and expertise have driven the successful development and delivery of a diverse range of 
custom websites, web apps, and mobile applications.

CORE TEAM EXPERIENCE (pg 1) 

iQ



47

REBECCA NELSON - Social Media Managment
Becca Nelson has over 5 years of experience in digital marketing as a social media 
content creator. She is passionate about showcasing destinations to attract visitors to 
unique and beautiful areas. Becca is a wife, mother of four, and a lover of sports and the 
outdoors.

ASHLEY MOSHER - Social Media Managment
Ashley is an expert social media marketer with over 10 years of experience, crafting 
campaigns that blend creativity with data-driven insights to boost brand visibility and 
engagement in tourism and hospitality. A coffee enthusiast and cat lover, she balances 
work with a passion for travel, outdoor exploration, and cooking chef-level meals at home.
.
JESSIE ECK - Graphic Design
Jessie is an Emmy award-winning designer with nearly 20 years of experience. She is 
an expert in Adobe Creative Suite and her portfolio features notable brands like Dish, 
DishLatino, Gannett, USAToday, SlingTV, NBCUniversal, United Way, Southwest Airlines, 
Pandora, Kellogg’s, Airbnb, Girls Scouts, National MS Society, NBA, WNBA, and others.

KIMBERLY GRAYDON - Graphic Design
Kimberly is a designer, photographer, and storyteller specializing in brand development, 
user experience, and publication design with over 10 years of experience. She graduated 
from the Corcoran School of Art and Design at The George Washington University.

CHRIS SUGLIA - Paid Ads Managment
With over 10 years of digital marketing experience, Chris takes an engineer’s approach to 
paid social media and has an exceptional understanding of how social algorithms work to 
consistently win ad auctions. Combining a background in production with a sharp creative 
eye, Chris leads with revenue-driven recommendations.

GABRIELA QUITIAN - Graphic Design
With over 10 years of graphic design experience and a fine arts background, Gabriela 
specializes in creating unique, impactful visuals that resonate with audiences and drive 
growth. Having lived and worked on three continents, she has learned to interpret design 
through different cultural lenses. 

SAMANTHA SHENNUM - Paid Ads Managment
Samantha is a digital marketing professional with over 8 years of experience, specializing 
in Google Ads, Bing Ads, and YouTube advertising. She has managed over 100,000 
campaigns with ad spend exceeding $100 million for brands like PetSmart, AAA, Toyota, 
and Anytime Fitness. a BS in Marketing from Arizona State University.

CORE TEAM EXPERIENCE (pg 2) 

iQ



48

OUR AGENCY STRUCTURE

 

 

 

 

 

 

Grant 
Writing

CLIENT

Tourism 
Product 

Development DMO 
Consulting

& 
Administration

Strategic 
Planning

Digital & 
Traditional 
Marketing

Social Media
& 

Influencer
Marketing

Web
Design

Creative
Design

Branding

SEO

Public 
Relations

Reporting 
&

Data
Analysis

PROJECT MANAGER

ACCOUNT DIRECTOR

Part Of Your Staff

We have an experienced and 
flexible staff that executes large 

projects while maintaining 
intimacy, fostering positive 

relationships, and remaining 
transparent.

True Partnership

Many of our clients have 
become lifelong friends. Our
recommendations, advice, 

guidance and expertise have led 
areas to prosper in a controlled, 

sustainable and responsible 
manner.

Extension To Your Team

With a hand-selected flexible staff, 
we fill the gaps you currently have. 
We are an extension of your board 
and staff. We take on projects and 
tasks where you lack the capacity, 

time, or expertise to execute.

iQ



49

What Is Destination Management?

Destination Management is a continuous, long-term process that supports areas, regions, 
counties, and cities in overseeing all aspects of tourism. This management typically 

includes - but is not limited to - marketing and advertising, enhancing visitor experience 
and education, tourism advocacy, strategic planning, product development, grant writing, 

budgeting, research, creative design, and consulting on social, economic, cultural and 
environmental matters.

You may notice that we are a Destination Management Agency,
rather than a Marketing Agency. It’s an important distinction 
and one we feel is imperative to the long-term success of an 
area as it pertains to economic development as well as tourism.

OUR AGENCY 

iQ



50

• HOLISTIC: We provide much more than marketing.  We handle planning, 
      execution and deliver proven processes to position communities as 
      destinations.

• COLLABORATIVE: We treat our clients as the experts, actively listening to 
their goals and those of the residents.

• RELATIONSHIP-FOCUSED: We believe in forming long-lasting partnerships.

• SUSTAINABLE: We prioritize steady, sustainable growth in our planning; 
      looking forward years in advance.

• SUPPORTIVE: We function as an extension of your team, assisting with   
      budget decisions, crafting tourism programs, executing marketing plans, and    
      delivering data analysis.

DestinationiQ is:

Why Do I Need Destination Management?  

Do you feel like there is not enough time or expertise for you and your 
staff to elevate your community tourism efforts to the next level?

Not enough time? Not the right expertise? DestinationiQ fills those gaps, helping your 
destination thrive sustainably while preserving its authenticity. 

We manage every aspect of tourism - from strategy to execution. 

With our next-level expertise, we bring the benefits of tourism to life, creating solutions that 
not only elevate destinations but also empower the people and businesses that make 
them home.

iQ



51

DestinationiQ was born to bring this vision to life
At DestinationiQ, we transcend the conventional boundaries of a tourism 
consultancy, assuming the role of community architects, championing 
brighter futures by managing every facet of tourism. 

Our approach centers on cultivating meaningful connections, driven by 
profound listening, fostering collaboration, and embracing unity. We're driven 
by the possibility that communities can thrive sustainably, and that positive 
change can be created without sacrificing authenticity. 

Like all stories, our journey doesn't stop after the first step. Together, we will 
make your community a destination that prospers and enriches lives.

We believe that travel strengthens communities. Every community deserves 
to be a destination that prospers from the economic impact provided by 
tourism, improving the quality of life for visitors and residents. We constantly 
rally for awareness and understanding of the value and potential of tourism. 

Postive impact that endures

Our approach is intelligent and forward-thinking. 

We're not just about quick wins but about creating 
responsible and sustainable positive impact. 

DestinationiQ is here to shape a brighter future that 
transcends generations.

 

 

 

 

iQ



52

We’ve found that many communities need support to fully realize their potential and 
enjoy the economic benefits that tourism growth can bring. . 

As tourism management experts with decades of experience, we recognized a gap 
in the market: traditional tourism consultancies often excel at planning but fall short 
when it comes to execution - beyond just buying ads. Our vision is to empower com-
munities by combining expert guidance with hands-on execution, fundamentally 
redefining what a tourism consultancy can be.

OUR APPROACH

Travel has the power to 
strengthen communities

iQ



53

Long Term Partnerships and 
Increased Lodging Tax Revenue
Fremont County, Colorado

The FCTC brought on DestinationiQ as a full service destination 
management consultancy, which included everything from running monthly 
FCTC meetings, managing the tourism budget, assisting with advocating for 
community lodging tax votes, crisis communication, grant 
management, development, marketing, branding, and more. This 
relationship started in 2010 and continues today with the DestinationiQ 
staff having deep, historical knowledge of tourism management and 
marketing in Fremont County, Colorado.

The 
Solution

The 
Challenge

In 2010, the online presence and tourism marketing of Cañon City and the 
Royal Gorge Region was virtually non-existent. Lodging Tax growth was flat 
and there was no plan on how to use the lodging tax that was being 
received. The Fremont County Lodging Tax Council (FCTC) knew something 
needed to be done, but what?

Success Story

 Results   

Economic Impact &
Lodging Tax Revenue Growth

$103M+

$352K

$101M+

$320K

$98M+

$372K

$84M+

$230K

$91M+

$256K

$89M+

$236K

$87M+

$230K

$80M+

$203K

$80M+

$190K

$75M+

$140K

$75M+

$137K

$57M+

$116K

$58M+

$132K
2011 2012 20232022202120202019201820172016201520142013

Travel 
Spending

Lodging 
Tax 

Revenue



54

Website

239,436
Website Users

92.3 %
Website Engagement

3,059
Visitor Guide Downloads

Organic Social Media

70,700
Followers

59,200
Engagement

735,101
Reach

Starting with virtually nothing in 2010, The Royal Gorge Region sees 
phenomenal increases each year including these statistics from 

2022 to 2023

Paid Social Media

105,740
Reach

165,498
Impressions

113,928
Link Clicks

790
Comments

1,930
Shares

22,963
Reactions

Results from 2022 to 2023

554
Saves

iQ



55

Colorado Stargazing Experience for increased 
travel spending and overnight stays 
State of Colorado

Counties across Colorado had 
some common questions:

“How do we...”

Engage 
visitors of all 

ages and 
abilities

Increase 
heads in beds 
for lodging tax 

growth

Attract 
visitors who 

are more likely 
to “leave no 

trace”

Get 
visitors to 

travel further 
and stay 

longer

Bring 
attention to 

rural 
communities

Success Story

The 
Challenge

Several counties in Colorado known for their night skies and incredible 
stargazing opportunities sought to increase visitors through astrotourism, 
but with so many moving pieces, they didn’t know where to start.

Colorado Stargazing is a cooperative project between several counties. Our 
role is to manage financial contributions and develop and execute creative 
and marketing strategies, making communication between all participating 
counties key to the continued success of this project.

The program draws visitors out of busy metro areas and large mountain 
resorts and into rural Colorado, where visitors not only take in the wonders of 
Colorado’s dark skies but also book overnight stays and engage in daytime 
activities.

The 
Solution

Colorado Stargazing: Experience the Night reached millions of potential 
visitors in just nine months.

According to the 2022 Colorado Economic Impact of Travel Report (from 
Dean Runyan Associates), counties involved in this statewide program 
experienced consistent year-to-year growth in travel spending since the 
program’s launch (2019 – 2022).

The 
Results

iQ



56

County Travel Spending Results from 2019 to 2022

35.1%
Alamosa

11.7%
Custer

34.5%
Gunnison

15.3%
Ouray

23.8%
Huerfano

18.1%
Hinsdale

12.3%
Mineral

35.7%
Montrose

23.4%
Saguache

Colorado Stargazing - Experience the Night

This campaign was so successful, that DestinationiQ received the 
Most Outstanding Marketing Program of the Year Award for 2020.  

The program has become a model for other states.

iQ



57

Niche Asset Promotion for Increased Visitation 
Prowers County, Colorado

The 
Challenge

Prowers County - The Great High Prairie - in southeastern Colorado lacks the 
mountains that people tend to look for when traveling in Colorado. It does 
not have a popular scenic byway, grand resorts, hot springs, or large 
attractions. And while the county has some interesting history, including the 
new Amache National Historic Site, it still did not have a tourism asset 
that not only drew overnight visitors, but one the community rallied behind.

Prowers County boasts over 400 species of birds that will visit, reproduce, or 
even stay all year. This is the largest number of bird species in all Colorado, 
making the county a mecca for both the serious birder and the casual 
observer. Birding is a perfect activity for individuals and families, and the 
county has multiple hotspots that are notorious for finding expected species 
and the occasional rare or unexpected flyer.

Prowers County also hosts the annual High Plains Snow Goose Festival, a 
popular event that has tripled in size from 2019 to 2022 while also garnering 
significant press. This being the case, the Prowers County Lodging Tax Panel, 
in partnership with DestinationiQ, chose to focus its efforts on avitourism.

The 
Solution

Funding Sources:

• 2023 Colorado 
Tourism Office 

       Marketing Match  
       Grant

• 2024 Colorado 
Tourism Office 

       Marketing Match  
       Grant

Success Story

Website and Social Media

The Results: 2022 vs. 2023

+88.5%
Website Users

47,482 vs. 89,510

+40.6 %
Social Reach

924,300 vs. 1,300,000

+539.3%
Social Interactions

6,100 vs. 39,000

+163.9 %
Social Link Clicks
30,500 vs. 80,500

$28.3 M

2022 2023

$29.1 M

Travel Spending 
increased by 

$800,000

iQ



58

Brand Awareness and Transient Room Tax Growth  
Beaver County, Utah

The 
Challenge

Beaver County partnered with DestinationiQ in December 2020 after 
completing a tourism rebranding project. The new brand - Ramblers - 
would be a hard sell in the local community. The brand had to be interpret-
ed by DestinationiQ to use across all media, and needed to be recognized 
as Beaver County by statewide and out of state visitors. While working on 
brand recognition, DestinationiQ was also tasked with marketing the 
county for increased transient room tax.

To bring the local community on board with the new branding, we 
developed a Leave No Trace subrand - Ramble Responsibly - that is used on 
all Beaver County marketing materials in respect to those who call Beaver 
County home.

To marry the brand with the county name, we updated all statewide 
content to include both the brand name and the county name, updated 
Ramblers logos to include “Beaver County, Utah” and ensured the two 
names would be mentioned together indefinitely, or at least until we were 
confident “Ramblers” was recognized nationwide.

We built a new website that showcased “Ramblers”, using iterations of the 
term throughout, extended social media services, launched TikTok, 
developed OHV, gravel, and stargazing guides that showcased the brand, 
and used the term Ramblers in additional marketing material, such as 
Google Ads, email marketing, billboards, third party marketing outlets and 
more!

The 
Solution

Funding Sources:

• 2020 UOT Coop 
Marketing Grant

• 2021 UOT Coop 
Marketing Grant

• 2022 UOT Coop 
Marketing Grant

• 2022 OHVR Grant
• Beaver County 

Transient Room 
and Restaurant 
Tax

Success Story

iQ



59

The Results

+76%
2021 Website Traffic

33,000 users

+82 %
2022 Website Traffic

60,000 users

+197%
2023 Website Traffic

178,000 users

2.3M
2022 Reach

6M
2023 Reach

2K
2021 - 2023

Follower Growth

Website

Social Media

$187,121

2020 2021

$273,103

+45.95%

$308,871

2022 2023

$359,513

+16.4%

Transient Room 
Tax Growth

+13.1%

iQ



60

Here are a few destination brands who we have been privileged to partner with; helping 
them on their tourism evolution journey. Our relationships with these destinations range 

from current full-agency 12+ year destination management to others with one-time 
projects.  All are a source of pride and hold a special place in our hearts and minds.

Partner 
Brands

iQ



61 iQ

Partner Brands



62

REFERENCES

ROYAL GORGE REGION 
fremont county, colorado
royalgorgeregion.com

ADAM ARNOLD
615 Macon Ave.
Room 105
Cañon City, CO 81212
adamleviarnold@gmail.com
719.285.3934

RAMBLERS 
beaver county, utah
ramblersutah.com

JEN WAKELAND
105 E Center Street
PO Box 789
Beaver, UT 84713
jenw@beaver.utah.gov
435.421.9986

MORGAN VALLEY 
morgan county, utah
exploremorganutah.com

JUSTIN REES
48 West Young Street
P.O. Box 886
Morgan, Utah 84050
justin.rees@morgancountyutah.gov
801.824.7594

JUAB_IS 
juab county, utah
juabtravel.com

SHANNA MEMMOT
160 N. Main Street
Nephi, UT 84648
shannam@juabcounty.gov
435.610.0985

VISIT COTTONWOOD
cottonwood, arizona
visitcottonwoodaz.org

TRICIA LEWIS
821 N Main St.
Cottonwood, AZ 86326
tlewis@cottonwoodaz.gov 
928.340.2729

VISIT TRINIDAD
trinidad, colorado
visittrinidadcolorado.com

MARTY HACKETT
309 Nevada
Trinidad, CO 81082
marty.hackett@trinidad.co.gov
719.846.9512

iQ



63

What We Believe
• We believe in a positive team and a family spirit.
• We believe in encouragement and active listening.
• We believe in building open and honest long-term relationships 

through transparent communication.
• We believe in efficiency, doing more with less.
• We believe in being adventurous, flexible, creative, passionate, and 

open-minded.
• We believe in using metrics to guide our recommendations and 

decisions.
• We believe in using strategies that provide the highest rate of return.
• We believe in sustainable and responsible tourism.
• We believe in learning and sharing our knowledge with others.
• We believe in quality over quantity.

You will never get lost in the shuffle.

iQ













1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. 2025-01 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING HARDIN CITY CODE  
AMENDING PEDESTRIAN INTERFERENCE  

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council (hereinafter “Council”) of the City of Hardin 
(hereinafter “City”) desires to modify the misdemeanor offense of Pedestrian 
Interference, codified as § 6-1-12 in the Hardin City Code. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council finds that there is an increasing danger to 
pedestrians resting or sleeping in boulevards and rights of way, adjacent to 
vehicle traffic; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council also finds that persons resting or sleeping in 
boulevards or rights of way leads to conduct which disturbs the public peace and 
which is offensive to public morals. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR 
THE CITY OF HARDIN, MONTANA, Title 6, Chapter 1, Section 12, Subsection 
A is amended by the insertion of language (underlined), as follows: 
 
6-1-12: PEDESTRIAN INTERFERENCE: 
 

A. The following definitions apply in this section: 
 

   AGGRESSIVELY BEG: To beg with the intent to intimidate another person into 
giving money or goods. Aggressive begging also includes approaching any 
occupied vehicle or any pedestrian, whether on private or public property, without 
invitation, to ask for money or goods as charity. 
 
   BEG: To ask for money or goods as a charity, whether by words, bodily 
gestures, signs, or other means. 
 
   INTIMIDATE: To engage in conduct which would make a reasonable person 
fearful or feel compelled. 
 
   OBSTRUCT PEDESTRIAN OR VEHICULAR TRAFFIC: To walk, stand, sit, lie 
or place an object in such a manner as to block passage by another person or a 
vehicle, or to require another person or a driver of a vehicle to take evasive 
action to avoid physical contact. Acts authorized as an exercise of one's 
constitutional right to picket or legally protest shall not constitute obstruction of 
pedestrian or vehicular traffic. 
 
   PUBLIC PLACE: An area generally visible to public view and includes alleys, 
bridges, buildings, driveways, parking lots, parks, plazas, sidewalks, boulevards, 
rights of way, and streets open to the general public, including those that serve 



2 of 2 

food or drink or provide entertainment, and the doorways and entrances to 
buildings or dwellings and the grounds enclosing them. 
 
DATE OF EFFECT. 

 The amendment to this ordinance shall take effect and be in force thirty 
(30) days from the date of its second reading and passage by the City Council as 
required by law. 
 
 FIRST READING AND PASSAGE By a majority vote of the members 
present this _____ day of July, 2025. 
 
  YEAS _________   NAYS _________  

 
_________________________________ 

     Mayor 
 
     ATTEST: 
 
                                                                         
     City Clerk  
 
 
 POSTED AND MADE AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC this _______ day of  
____________________, 202___. 
 
 
     ________________________________   
     City Clerk 
 
 
 SECOND READING AND PASSAGE By a majority vote of the members  
present this _____ day of ______________________, 2025. 
 
  YEAS _________   NAYS _________ 
   

    
_________________________________ 

     Mayor 
 
     ATTEST:     
 
                                ______                              
     City Clerk   



1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. 2025-02 
 
AN ORDINANCE CREATING THE OFFENSE OF MAINTAINING A 

DISORDERLY HOUSE 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council (hereinafter “Council”) of the City of Hardin 
(hereinafter “City”) desires to modify the Hardin City Code to regulate houses 
which regularly disturb the peace by certain activities. 
 
 WHEREAS, Montana Code Annotated § 7-32-4302 (2023) authorizes the 
Council to enact ordinances to regulate certain actions including “fights, riots, 
loud noises, disorderly conduct, obscenity, and acts or conduct calculated to 
disturb the public peace or which are offensive to public morals.”; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council finds that there are houses in the City Limits of 
Hardin at which such disorderly conduct regularly exists that the owner, 
responsible party, manager, occupant or tenant should be punished for allowing 
such conduct. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR 
THE CITY OF HARDIN, MONTANA, Title 6, Chapter 1 is amended by the 
insertion of a new Section 17 (underlined language), as follows: 
 
6-1-17: MAINTAINING A DISORDERLY HOUSE: 
 
A person who keeps and maintains, either by himself or others, a common, ill-
governed, and disorderly house, to the encouragement of gaming, drinking, or 
other misbehavior, or to the common disturbance of the neighborhood or orderly 
citizens, is guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be subject to a fine of not more 
than five hundred dollars ($500.00), and imprisonment of up to six (6) months in 
the County Jail. 
 
DATE OF EFFECT. 
 The amendment to this ordinance shall take effect and be in force thirty 
(30) days from the date of its second reading and passage by the City Council as 
required by law. 
 
 FIRST READING AND PASSAGE By a majority vote of the members 
present this _____ day of July, 2025. 
 
 YEAS _________   NAYS _________  

_________________________________ 
     Mayor 
 
 



2 of 2 

     ATTEST:     
 
                                ______                              
     City Clerk   

 
 
 
 
 
 POSTED AND MADE AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC this _______ day of  
____________________, 202___. 
 
 
     ________________________________   
     City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 SECOND READING AND PASSAGE By a majority vote of the members  
present this _____ day of ______________________, 2025. 
 
  YEAS _________   NAYS _________ 
   

    
_________________________________ 

     Mayor 
 
     ATTEST:     
 
                                ______                              
     City Clerk   




